ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR 


1. THE CIRCUIT COURT ERRONEOUSLY CONCLUDED THAT WEST 
VIRGINIA CODE §7-14-17 REQUIRES A FULL, DE NOVO, 
EVIDENTIARY HEARING WHEN AN ACCUSED DEPUTY SHERIFF 
APPEALS AN ADVERSE RULING OF A HEARING BOARD AFTER 
THE HEARING BOARD CONDUCTED A FULL EVIDENTIARY 
HEARING ON THE RECORD. 

II. THE CIRCUIT COURT ERRONEOUSL Y CONCLUDED THAT AN 
ACCUSED DEPUTY SHERIFF IS ENTITLED TO TWO FULL 
EVIDENTIARY HEARINGS, ONE BEFORE A HEARING BOARD AND 
ONE BEFORE THE CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION. 

III. THE CIRCUIT COURT'S DETERMINATION THAT CIVIL SERVICE 
COMMISSIONS ARE VESTED WITH THE SOLE AUTHORITY TO 
MAKE A FINAL DECISION AS TO WHETHER AND HOW A DEPUTY 
SHERIFF WILL BE DISCIPLINED IS CONTRARY TO WEST VIRGINIA 
CODE §7-14C-5 WHICH CONFERS THAT BINDING AUTHORITY ON A 
HEARING BOARD. 

IV. THE COURT ERRONEOUSLY CONCLUDED THAT ALL 
DISCIPLINARY HEARINGS BEFORE THE CIVIL SERVICE 
COMMISSION ARE REQUIRED TO BE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC. 

V. THE COURT ERRONEOUSLY GRANTED THE RESPONDENT'S WRIT 
OF MANDAMUS WHEN THE RESPONDENT HAD NOT MET ALL OF 
THE ELEMENTS FOR A WRIT OF MANDAMUS. 

STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

This is an appeal from an Order of the Circuit Court of Harrison County entered on 

August 9, 2016 granting the Respondent, Greg Scolapio's (hereinafter Lt. Scolapio) Writ of 

Mandamus and Declaratory Judgment in which it was ordered that he be provided a full, de 

novo, evidentiary hearing before the Harrison County Civil Service Commission. (App. 111

127). -TIliscasearisesllhder the Civil SerVice Code applicable to deputy shenffs, West V-irginia 

Code §§7-14-1 et seq and 7-14C-l et seq. This case involved an incident ("Cooler Incident") at 
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the Harrison County Courthouse that occurred on January 12,2015, wherein ajuror's lunchbox 

was placed in an area between two judges chambers and beside of an elevator used to transport 

incarcerated defendants and it was perceived by various courthouse security personnel to be a 

suspicious package. The disciplinary proceedings at the center of this case are a direct result of 

Lt Scolapio's response or lack of response to this incident, which served as the basis for his 

tennination from employment. 

Lt Scolapio was a Lieutenant with the Harrison County Sheriffs Department and as such 

was a civil service employee. He was employed with the Harrison County Sheriff's Department 

from August 20, 1997 until February 27, 2015 and had been assigned to the Court House 

Security position since July 1, 2014. On January 13, 2015, the Respondent was made aware that 

an internal investigation was being conducted against him. This internal investigation was being 

conducted in regards to a suspicious package that was discovered on the fourth floor of the 

courthouse, a call from one of Lt. Scolapio's bailiffs for assistance, and Lt. Scolapio's failure to 

respond to the call for assistance. 

Following the Cooler Incident, on January 20, 2015, Petitioner (hereinafter Sheriff 

Marano) issued a letter to Lt. Scolapio indicating that he was to be immediately suspended with 

pay from his position as Lieutenant with the Harrison County Sheriff s Department and that 

Sheriff Marano would be seeking Lt Scolapio's termination thereafter. (App. 20-22). The letter 

contained a statement of charges and notice ofLt Scolapio's right to an Article 14C hearing 

before a Hearing Board, in accordance with West Virginia Code § 7-14C-3. By letter dated 

January 21,2015, Lt. Scolapio submitted a letter to Sheriff Marano asserting his right to the 

Article 14C hearing. (App. 24-25). 
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An Article 14C hearing before the Hearing Board was scheduled for February 18,2015, 

at 1 :00 p.m. Lt Scolapio' s counsel requested a prehearing conference with the Article 14C 

Hearing Board on February 13,2015, at which time he requested a continuance of the hearing 

scheduled for February 18, 2015 at 1 :00 p.m. The Article 14C Hearing Board denied that 

request. Lt. Scolapio's counsel on February 17,2015, filed with the Harrison County Circuit 

Court a request for an injunction to prevent the Article 14C hearing from occurring on February 

18,2015. After a hearing on the morning of February 18,2015, in which several witnesses 

testified and oral arguments occurred, Judge Bedell of the Harrison County Circuit Court denied 

Lt. Scolapio 's request for an injunction. 

Therefore, the Article 14C hearing occurred on February 18,2015 beginning at 1 :00 p.m. 

in the Harrison County Commission Courtroom and ending late in the evening, both parties were 

permitted to put on all relevant witnesses and evidence. At the conclusion of the Article 14C 

hearing the Hearing Board ordered that each ofthe Parties' counsel submit their findings of 

fact/conclusions of law within 7 days from the date of the hearing. 

On February 26, 2015, the Hearing Board rendered their findings offacts/conclusions of 

law upholding the Sheriffs termination ofLt. Scolapio. (App. 27). On February 26, 2015, Lt 

Scolapio's status was changed from suspended with pay to terminated. On March 12,2015, Lt. 

Scolapio's counsel, Sam Harrold filed a notice of appeal on behalf ofhis client seeking another 

evidentiary hearing (Article 14) in front of the Civil Service Commission. (App. 93-96) 

The Civil Service Commission for Deputy Sheriff's conducted a phone conference with counsel 

regarding Lt Scolapio's request for another evidentiary hearing. The Commission requested each 

party submit a memorandum on the issue and on April 18,2016 at 8:30 a.m., the Civil Service 

Commission for Deputy Sheriffs conducted another phone conference, in which both parties 
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argued their respective views on the issue. On April 23, 2015, the Civil Service Commission for 

Deputy Sheriffs issued a ruling advising the parties that they would not be conducting another 

evidentiary hearing on Lt. Scolapio' s appeal and that the appeal would be on the record from the 

Article 14C hearing. CAppo 98-99) On May 14,2015, Lt. Scolapio filed his Complaint for a Writ 

of Mandamus and Declaratory Judgment in the Circuit Court of Harrison County to compel the 

Civil Service Commission to provide a de novo evidentiary hearing in his disciplinary appeal. 

CAppo 3-18). 

On March 31, 2016, the Civil Service Commission for Deputy Sheriffs issued a ruling 

based upon its review of the record which reversed and set aside the Article 14C Hearing 

Board's decision regarding Charge 1 and affirmed the Article 14C Hearing Board's decision 

regarding Charges 2,3,4,5,6,7, ultimately affirming the Hearing Board's decision that the 

Sheriff had reasonable grounds to terminate Lt. Scolapio. CAppo 128-129). On June 23, 2016, Lt. 

Scolapio filed a Petition for Appeal from the order of the Harrison County Deputy Sheriff's Civil 

Service Commission CAppo 128-151). 

On August 9, 2016, the Circuit Court entered its declaratory judgment order and granted 

Lt. Scolapio's Writ ofMandamus compelling another full evidentiary hearing before the 

Harrison County Civil Service Commission. CAppo 111-127). On September 8, 2016, Sheriff 

Marano, by counsel, Andrea Roberts, filed a Notice of Appeal to the Supreme Court of West 

Virginia appealing the Circuit Court's decision to grant the Writ of Mandamus and a Scheduling 

Order was entered September 13,2016. 
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SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT 

The Writ of Mandamus and the Declaratory Judgment was improperly issued because Lt. 

Scolapio did not establish that the Civil Service Commission owed him a duty to provide another 

full evidentiary hearing for his appeal and Lt. Scolapio had another adequate remedy at law. 

The primary declaratory judgment issues in this case which resulted in the erroneous 

granting of the requested Writ of Mandamus involve the interpretation of several statutes 

regarding appeal procedures relating to adverse rulings from the Deputy Sheriff's pre

disciplinary Hearing Board (Article 14C hearing) and the Civil Service Commission; more 

specifically whether West Virginia Code § 7-14-15 & 17 requires a Civil Service Commission to 

provide a second full, de novo, evidentiary hearing to a deputy sheriff that has already been given 

a first full evidentiary hearing on the record in front of the Article 14C Hearing Board pursuant 

to § 7-14C-3. Additionally, whether or not the Civil Service Commission hearings are required to 

be open to the public and whether the Civil Service Commission is vested with the sole authority 

to make a final decision about how a deputy sheriff will be disciplined is also a matter of 

statutory construction. 

STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT AND DECISION 

Sheriff Marano suggests this appeal is appropriate for Rule 20 Argument to resolve issues 

of first impression; whether Article 14C appeals are appeals on the record or de novo. 

ARGUMENT 

I. 	 The Circuit Court erroneously concluded that West Virginia Code §7-14-17 
requires a full, de novo, evidentiary hearing when an accused Deputy Sheriff 
appeals an adverse ruling of a Hearing Board after the Hearing Board conducted a 
full evidentiary hearing on the record. 
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The Circuit Court erroneously concluded that W. Va. Code § 7-14-17 requires a 

secondary full, de novo, evidentiary hearing on appeal from a ruling of a Hearing Board but a 

reading of the statute shows the legislature intended for all appeals to be conducted from the 

record below. This Court has not previously determined the nature of the hearing required on 

appeal from a Hearing Board. When statutory interpretation is at issue, the primary objective is 

to "ascertain and give effect to the intent of the legislature." Syl. Pt. 1, Smith v. State Workmen's 

Compensation Commissioner, 159 W.Va. 108,219 S.E.2d 361 (1975). When ascertaining the 

legislature'S intent, a court must consider the precise words used by the legislature: "A statutory 

provision which is clear and unambiguous and plainly expresses the legislative intent will not be 

interpreted by the courts but will be given full force and effect." Syl. Pt. 2, State v. Epperly, 135 

W.Va. 877, 65 S.E.2d 488 (1951). 

When a deputy sheriff appeals the decision of an Article 14C hearing board, West 

Virginia Code § 7-14C-5 provides the appeal procedure: 

Any deputy sheriff adversely affected by any decision, order or action taken as a 
result of a hearing as herein provided has the right to appeal the decision, order or 
action to the deputy sheriffs civil service commission, in the manner provided for 
in section fifteen [§ 7-14-15], article fourteen ofthis chapter. 

The sheriff may also appeal the decision of the hearing board if he or she believes 
the department would be adversely affected by the order or action of the hearing 
board. 


The order or action of the hearing hoard is binding upon all involved parties 

unless overturned in the appeal process by the deputy sheriffs civil service 

commission or the circuit court of the county wherein the affected parties reside. 


W. Va. Code § 7-14C-5 (1995). 

If the legislature intended for the Article 14C hearing to just be a temporary decision until 

another full evidentiary hearing was conducted by the Civil Service Commission then the 

Legislature would have called it a hearing instead of an appeal; would not have made it a binding 
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decision and would not have referred to West Virginia Code § 7-14-15 to explain the procedure 

for appeal. In addition the Legislature provided for an appeal to the civil service commission or 

to the Circuit Court and, the Legislature didn't provide for a de- novo appeal to the Civil Service 

Commission. The Legislature provided for an appeal without further description. This Court 

should hold, as it has done in the past, that the Legislature was aware of the meanings of the 

words "hearing" and "appeal" and that it intended only one hearing to be followed by an appeal, 

not another hearing. 

The Circuit Court erroneously compares this process to an appeal from a magistrate court 

criminal case to the circuit court in which the appeal is de novo, but the flaw in the analogy is in 

the magistrate court proceeding Rule 20.1 (d) of the Rules of Criminal Procedure for Magistrate 

Courts provides that "an appeal of a magistrate court criminal proceeding tried before a jury shall 

be heard on the record in circuit court. An appeal of a criminal proceeding tried before a 

magistrate without a jury shall be by trial de novo in circuit court without a jury." In the present 

case the Legislature did not direct that the appeal from the Article 14C Hearing Board decision to 

the Civil Service Commission be a de novo hearing. 

West Virginia Code § 7-14-15 provides for a hearing if demanded by the deputy sheriff 

without requiring the hearing to be a de novo evidentiary hearing. Further, the statute grants the 

Civil Service Commission the discretion to hold a hearing without any demand therefore. There 

is not a statutory requirement for a de novo review and it would appear that the Civil Service 

Commission may, in its discretion, consider the appeal on the record with an opportunity for a 

hearing to present oral argument based on the record below. The civil service commission is 

required to make a record and must include a record of any testimony taken in the discretion of 

the Civil Service Commission. Finally section (f) provides for an appeal, it states as follows: 
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An appeal from the ruling of the commission may be had in the same manner and 
within the same time as specified in section seventeen [§7-14-17] of this article 
for an appeal from a ruling of a commission after hearing held in accordance with 
the provisions of said section. 

W. Va. Code § 7-14-15 (1971). 

West Virginia Code §7-14-17 provides: "Upon an appeal being taken and docketed with 

the clerk of the circuit court of the county, the circuit court shall proceed to hear the appeal upon 

the original record made before the commission and no additional proof may be permitted to be 

introduced" (emphasis added). W. Va. Code § 7-14-17 (2007). Surely the Legislature 

understood that on appeal, the entire record of proceedings in the Article 14C Hearing Board 

would be before the Civil Service Commission and would constitute a part of the record before 

the Civil Service Commission. It is clear that the legislative intent to have a full evidentiary 

hearing in front of the Article 14C Hearing Board and that an appeal from the Hearing Board 

ruling would be had in the same manner as an appeal from an Article 14 Civil Service 

Commission Haring to the Circuit Court, which are conducted upon the original record and that 

no additional proof would be permitted to be introduced on appeal. If the legislature intended for 

appeals from the Hearing Board to the Civil Service Commission to be conducted de novo, then 

it could have clearly stated so. 

Moreover, the intent of the legislature is further illustrated by 2010 WV S.B. 616. While 

the bill passed from the Senate to the House, it died in the House Committee on Veteran's 

Affairs and Homeland Security. The text of the bill added language to West Virginia Code § 7

14-6(4) regarding the duties and powers of the Civil Service Commission. Particularly, this new 

language specified that the civil service commission "shall hear appeals from decisions ofany 

hearing board conducted to section three, article fourteen-c of this chapter upon the original 
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record before the hearing board." 2010 Bill Text S.B. 616 (emphasis added). The bill also 

modified § 7-14C-3(a) and (b) as follows (additions noted in caps): 

(a) If the investigation or interrogation of a deputy sheriff results in the 
recommendation of some punitive action, then, before taking punitive action the 
sheriff shall give notice to the deputy sheriff that he or she is entitled to a hearing 
on the issues by a hearing board OR BY THE DEPUTY SHERIFFS' CIVIL 
SERVICE COMMISSION. IN THE EVENT THAT THE DEPUTY SHERIFF 
REQUESTS A HEARING BY A HEARING BOARD, THE SHERIFF WILL 
SCHEDULE A HEARING BOARD AND PROVIDE THE DEPUTY SHERIFF 
NOTICE OF A HEARING BEFORE A HEARING BOARD . The notice shall 
state the time and place of the hearing and the issues involved and be delivered to 
the deputy sheriff not less than ten days prior to the hearing. An official record, 
including testimony and exhibits, shall be kept of the hearing. 

(b) +he-ANY hearing BY A HEARING BOARD shall be conducted by the 
hearing board of the deputy sheriff eKeept that ifl the eveRt the recommeflded 
penitiv'e aetiofl is diseha:rge, suspeflsiofl or reductiofl ifl rank or pay, and the actiofl 
has been taken, the heariag shall be pursuant to the provisions of section 
seventeen, article fourteen of this chapter, if applicable. Both the sheriff and the 
deputy sheriff shall be given ample opportunity to present evidence and argument 
with respect to the issues involved. 

2010 Bill Text WV S.B. 616. It was made clear in the modifications to § 7-14-6 that if a deputy 

sheriff chose to have a hearing in front of a Article 14C hearing board, then any appeal would be 

made to the Civil Service Commission and the appeal would be heard upon the record from the 

full evidentiary Article 14C hearing. The sponsors of the bill succinctly captured the 

Legislature's original intent of having appeals from full evidentiary hearings conducted upon the 

record from the proceeding below. 

In contrast to the Legislature's intent when it comes to appeal procedures for deputy 

sheriffs, the Circuit Court, in its conclusion that a deputy sheriff is entitled to another full 

evidentiary hearing on appeal to the Civil Service Commission, unpersuasively relies on similar 

code sections, West Virginia Code §§ 8-14-1 et seq. and § 8-15-1 et seq., relating to disciplinary 

and appeal procedures for firemen and city police officers. 
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West Virginia Code § 8-14A-3(a) provides that "[b]efore taking any punitive action 

against an accused officer, the police or fire department shall give notice to the accused officer 

that he or she is entitled to a hearing on the issues by a hearing board or the applicable civil 

service commission." W. Va. Code § 8-14A-3(a) (1997). West Virginia Code § 8-14A-3(b) 

further provides the following: 

(b) When a civil service accused officer faces a recommended punitive action of 
discharge, suspension or reduction in rank or pay, but before such punitive action 
is taken, a hearing board must be appointed and must afford the accused civil 
service officer a hearing conducted pursuant to the provisions of article fourteen, 
section twenty [§ 8-14-20], or article fifteen, section twenty-five of this chapter [§ 
8-15-25]: Provided, That the punitive action may be taken before the hearing 
board conducts the hearing if exigent circumstances exist which require it. 

W. Va. Code § 8-14A-3(b) (1997). While these provisions may seem analogous to the provision 

relating to deputy sheriffs, the procedures differ. There are two distinct and separate hearings for 

deputy sheriffs, if requested, one hearing to be held in front of a pre-disciplinary hearing board 

ifpunitive action has not been taken or one hearing before the civil service commission if certain 

punitive action has already been taken against a deputy sheriff. § 7-14C-3(a)-(b) (emphasis 

added). For a fireman, there will always be a hearing before a hearing board but it can take place 

before punitive action is taken or after punitive action is taken based on the circumstances of 

each case. If the Legislature intended for these similar provisions to embody the exact same 

procedures, they could have made the language of these provisions the same, however, they did 

not. 

The applicable provision providing appeal rights for an aggrieved fireman states the 

following: 

(a) For civil service departments, a hearing board's decision rendered under 
subsection (b) or (c), section three of this article may be appealed by the police 
officer or firefighter adversely affected by the order or by the department chief if 
he or she believes that the department would be adversely affected by the hearing 
board's order. An appeal under this subsection shall be made to the applicable 
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civil service commission. Any party aggrieved by the civil service commission's 
ruling on the appeal may further appeal the civil service commission's ruling 
pursuant to the provisions of subsection (b), section twenty, article fourteen of this 
chapter [§ 8-14-20(b)] or subsection (b), section twenty-five, article fifteen of this 
chapter [§ 8-1S-2S(b)]. 

w. Va. Code § 8-14A-S(a) (1997). Unlike the appeal provision relating to deputy sheriffs in this 

case [§ 7-14C-5] , which explicitly directs you to the statute that describes the manner in which 

appeals from a hearing board are to take place [§ 7-14-17], this appeal provision referred to by 

the Circuit Court provides no such direction on how such appeals are to take place and the 

Circuit Court has to implicitly assume that those appeals are to be conducted de novo. The 

Respondent also relies on these same code provisions in citing Legg v. Felinton, 219, W. Va. 

478,637 S.E.2d 576, (2006). In Legg, a fireman was suspended from duty without pay and was

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