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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT 

Sheriff Marano's arguments on appeal fail to establish adequate grounds warranting a 

reversal of the Circuit Court's order granting mandamus relief and declaratory judgment in this 

matter. 

The Circuit Court correctly concluded that Articles 14 and 14C should be examined in Pari 

materia when it determined that Lt. Scolapio, and similarly-situated deputy sheriffs, on appeal 

from an Article 14C hearing board decision, are entitled to a full de novo evidentiary hearing under 
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Article 14. Following a pre-discipline hearing held in accordance with West Virginia Code 

§ 7-14C-3, Lt. Scolapio was subsequently tenninated from employment from the department. The 

Circuit Court correctly determined in its analysis that the statutory language ofWest Virginia Code 

§ 7-14-17 controls when a deputy faces severe punitive action, such as removal. 

Further, the Circuit Court properly detennined that deputy sheriffs in West Virginia are 

entitled to two full evidentiary hearings when punitive discipline involves removal, discharge, 

suspension or reduced rank or pay ofa deputy as provided in the statutory protections ofArticle 14. 

The Circuit Court's in Pari materia analysis was correct in determining that while pre-disciplinary 

hearings under Article 14C and post-discipline hearings under Article 14 are separate procedures, 

they are not "mutually exclusive" procedures as Sheriff Marano interprets them. 

Sheriff Marano's third and fourth assignments of error are flawed because they do not 

correctly interpret the substantive findings of the Circuit Court in its order. The third assignment 

oferror claims that the Circuit Court detennined that the Civil Service Commission is vested with 

the soul authority to make a final decision on "discipline." In fact, an examination of the order 

shows the Circuit Court only addressed, and correctly determined, that the Civil Service 

Commission is vested with the soul authority to make final decisions on discipline "related to 

matters involving removal, discharge, suspension or reduc[tion] in rank or pay" of a deputy in 

accordance with West Virginia Code § 7-14-17(a). Similarly, Sheriff Marano's fourth assignment 

of error focuses on the Circuit Court "concluding" that all disciplinary hearings before the Civil 

service Commission are required to be open to the public. The statutory language is clear and 

unambiguous that deputy sheriffs have the discretion to request a public hearing, but it is not 

mandatory. West Virginia Code § 7-14-17(a). However, a fair and objective analysis ofthe Circuit 

Court's order demonstrates that the Court was simply making an analysis ofseveral rights provided 
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in West Virginia Code § 7-14-17(a), not making a determinative ruling on the issue of a public 

hearing. 

Additionally, the Circuit Court correctly determined that Lt. Scolapio met all of the 

elements for a writ ofmandamus relief in this matter. The facts show that Lt. Scolapio had a clear 

legal right to the relief sought through Article 14C and Article 14, and that a legal duty existed on 

the part of the Commission to provide Lt. Scolapio with a full de novo evidentiary hearing on 

appeal, without any other adequate remedy available. 

Finally, Lt. Scolapio asserts a cross assignment of error regarding the Circuit Court's order 

granting the motion to intervene filed by Sheriff Marano in this matter. When applying Rule 

24(a)(2) of the West Virginia Rules of Civil Procedure and the four-part test provided in State ex 

reI. Ball v. Cummings, 208 W. Va. 393,398, 540 S.E.2d 917, 922 (1999), which control the 

intervention of parties, Sheriff Marano clearly fails to establish an interest in the case relating to 

the mandamus relief req uested by Lt. Scolapio. 

F or these reasons, Lt. Scolapio requests that the order granting mandamus relief by the 

Circuit Court be affirmed and Sheriff Marano's appeal be dismissed. 

STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT AND DECISION 

Pursuant to Rule 18 of the West Virginia Rules of Appellate Procedure, oral argument is 

not necessary for this appeal. Lt. Scolapio contends that the case facts and legal arguments are 

adequately presented by the parties in their briefs and the record on appeal, and that the decisional 

process would not be significantly aided by oral argument. 

ARGUMENT 

I.) The Circuit Court correctly concluded that a deputy sheriff appealing the decision of 
an Article 14C hearing board is entitled to a full de novo evidentiary hearing before 
the Civil Service Commission in accordance with West Virginia Code § 7-14-17. 

6 




Lt. Scolapio, and similarly situated deputy sheriffs in the State of West Virginia, have a 

clear right to a full de novo evidentiary hearing before their civil service commissions in 

accordance with West Virginia Code § 7-14-17 when appealing an adverse ruling of an Article 

14C hearing board. In its order granting mandamus relief, the Circuit Court properly concluded that 

the arguments of Sheriff Marano interpret the provisions of Article 14C and Article 14 in a manner 

that "abrogates the role" of the civil service commission, and does not comport with the statutory 

language and legislative intent as written. Though West Virginia Code § 7-14-17 and West Virginia 

Code § 7-14C-3 each provide separate hearing procedures for deputy sheriffs, they are procedures 

designed for various levels and stages of the discipline process and not so "distinct" as to be mutually 

exclusive to one another. 

In construing statutes, like Article 14 and Article 14C, where the statutory interpretation is 

at issue between the parties, "[t]he primary object in construing a statute is to ascertain and give 

effect to the intent ofthe Legislature." Syi. Pt. 1, Smith v. State Workmen's Compensation Commr., 

159 W. Va. 108,219 S.E.2d 361 (1975). In making its analysis of the subject statutes, the Circuit 

Court wisely determined that "both sets of pertinent statutes are in Pari materia, and thus they 

should be read together to determine legislative intent." App. 119. (citing Syi. Pt. 5, Fruehauf 

Corp. v. Huntington Moving & Storage Co., 159 W. Va. 14,217 S.E.2d 907 (1975); see also Syi. 

Pt. 5, State v. Snyder, 64 W. Va. 659, 63 S.E.2d 385 (1908)). Further examination of the opinion 

in Fruehauf Corporation shows the Supreme Court going on to state: 

[t]his Court has consistently held that statutes relating to the same 
subject matter must be read and applied together regardless of 
whether reference is made by one to the other. State ex rei. West 
Virginia Board ofEducation v. Miller, 153 W. Va. 414, 168 S.E.2d 
820 (1969); State v. Condry, 139 W. Va. 827, 83 S.E.2d 470 (1954). 
Statutes which relate to the same persons or things, or to the same 
class ofpersons or things, or statutes which have a common purpose 
will be regarded in Pari materia to assure recognition and 
implementation of the legislative intent. State ex reI. Slatton v. 
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Boles, 147 W. Va. 674,130 S.E.2d 192 (1963); State ex reI. Graney 
& Fordv. Sims, 144 W. Va. 72, 105 S.E.2d 886 (1958). 

Fruehauf Corp. v. Huntington Moving & Storage Co., 159 W. Va. 14,22,217 S.E.2d 907, 912 

(1975) (emphasis added). The Circuit Court further noted in its opinion that "[a] cardinal rule of 

statutory construction is that significance and effect must, if possible, be given to every section, 

clause, word, or part of the statute." Syl. Pt. 3, Jackson v. Belcher, 232 W. Va. 513, 753 S.E.2d 52 

(2013). 

West Virginia Code § 7 -14-17 (originally enacted by the Legislature in 1971) is the bedrock 

statute for West Virginia deputy sheriffs who face serious punitive discipline by being "removed, 

discharged, suspended or reduced in rank or pay." Specifically, the statute provides: 

[nJo deputy sheriff ofany county subject to the provisions of this 
article may be removed, discharged, suspended or reduced in rank 
orpay exceptforjust cause, which may not be religious or political, 
except as provided in section fifteen of this article; and no such 
deputy may be removed, discharged, suspended or reduced in rank 
or pay except as provided in this article and in no event until the 
deputy has been furnished with a written statement of the reasons 
for the action. In every case of such removal, discharge, suspension 
or reduction, a copy of the statement of reasons therefor and of the 
written answer thereto, if the deputy desires to file such written 
answer, shall be furnished to the civil service commission and 
entered upon its records. If the deputy demands it, the civil service 
commission shall grant a public hearing, which hearing shall be 
held within a period of ten days from the filing of the charges in 
writing or the written answer thereto, whichever shall last occur. At 
the hearing, the burden shall be upon the sheriff to justify his or her 
action, and in the event the sheriff fails to justify the action before 
the commission, then the deputy shall be reinstated with full pay, 
forthwith and without any additional order, for the entire period 
during which the deputy may have been prevented from performing 
his or her usual employment, and no charges may be officially 
recorded against the deputy's record. The deputy, if reinstated or 
exonerated, shall, if represented by legal counsel, be awarded 
reasonable attorney fees to be determined by the commission and 
paid by the sheriff from county funds. A written record of all 
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testimony taken at the hearing shall be kept and preserved by the 
civil service commission, which record shall be sealed and not be 
open to public inspection unless an appeal is taken from the action 
of the commission. 

W. Va. Code § 7-14-17(a) (emphasis added). As the Circuit Court emphasizes, Section 17(a) 

addresses specific punitive measures being taken against a deputy sheriff and provides the deputy 

numerous rights, such as the right to have a furnished written statement of the reasons for the 

action, to demand a public hearing, that the burden is upon the sheriff, to have an attorney, and a 

written record taken of all testimony. 

The Legislature later enacted West Virginia Code § 7-14C-1, et seq., in 1995 to provide 

due process procedures for the investigation of deputy sheriffs and provide pre-disciplinary 

hearings before a peer review hearing board. Those hearing procedures provide: 

(a) If the investigation or interrogation of a deputy sheriff results in 
the recommendation of some punitive action, then, before taking 
punitive action the sheriff shall give notice to the deputy sheriff that 
he or she is entitled to a hearing on the issues by a hearing board. 
The notice shall state the time and place ofthe hearing and the issues 
involved and be delivered to the deputy sheriff not less than ten days 
prior to the hearing. An official record, including testimony and 
exhibits, shall be kept of the hearing. 

(b) The hearing shall be conducted by the hearing board of the 
deputy sheriff except that in the event the recommended punitive 
action is discharge, suspension or reduction in rank or pay, and the 
action has been taken, the hearing shall be pursuant to the 
provisions ofsection seventeen, article fourteen ofthis chapter, if 
applicable. Both the sheriff and the deputy sheriff shall be given 
ample opportunity to present evidence and argument with respect to 
the issues involved. 

(c) With respect to the subject of any investigation or hearing 
conducted pursuant to this section, the hearing board may subpoena 
witnesses and administer oaths or affirmations and examine any 
individual under oath and may require and compel the production of 
records, books, papers, contracts and other documents. 

(d) Any decision, order or action taken as a result ofthe hearing shall 
be in writing and shall be accompanied by fmdings of fact. The 
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findings shall consist of a concise statement upon each issue in the 
case. A copy of the decision or order and accompanying findings 
and conclusions, along with written recommendations. 

W. Va. Code § 7-14C-3 (emphasis added). In addition, Section 5 ofArticle 14C provides appellate 

rights to each party following the proceedings before the hearing board: 

[a]ny deputy sheriff adversely affected by any decision, order or 
action taken as a result of a hearing as herein provided has the right 
to appeal the decision, order or action to the deputy sheriff's civil 
service commission, in the manner provided for in section fifteen, 
article fourteen ofthis chapter. 

The sheriff may also appeal the decision of the hearing board if he 
or she believes the department would be adversely affected by the 
order or action of the hearing board. 

The order or action of the hearing board is binding upon all involved 
parties unless overturned in the appeal process by the deputy 
sheriff's civil service commission or the circuit court of the county 
wherein the affected parties reside. 

W. Va. Code § 7-14C-5 (emphasis added). 

In examining West Virginia Code § 7-14-15, cross-referenced in West Virginia Code § 7-

14C-5, it generally addresses the prohibition of certain political activities by deputy sheriffs and 

provides for their removal if such activities are determined to be in violation of the statute. 

However, Section 15(f) ofArticle 14 provides: 

(f) An appeal from the ruling of the commission may be had in the same manner 
and within the same time as specified in section seventeen of this article for an 
appeal from a ruling of a commission after hearing held in accordance with the 
provisions ofsaid section. 

W. Va. Code § 7-14-15(f) (emphasis added). 

Therefore, a proper reading ofArticle 14C and Article 14 together, as they relate to appeals 

of punitive discipline resulting in a deputy being "removed, discharged, suspended or reduced in 

rank or pay" requires that the articles be read in Pari materia. As such, it is clear when reading 
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Article 14C that the Legislature intended that a deputy who suffers this particular punitive action 

be provide the appellate rights afforded in Article 14 to full de novo appeal with an evidentiary 

hearing before the Civil Service Commission. 

Based on the statutory intent and procedural facts presented, Lt. Scolapio contends that all 

civil service commissions have a legal duty to provide a deputy sheriff with a full de novo 

evidentiary hearing on appeal when subject to removal. While West Virginia Code § 7-14C-1, et 

seq., and West Virginia Code § 7-14-17 contemplate two types of hearings to protect the due 

process rights ofcivil service employees, those procedures are not mutually exclusive and clearly 

are designed to work hand-in-hand. Article 14C provides a pre-disciplinary hearing as part ofan 

investigation process that is held by a "peer review" hearing board. Then ifthe discipline is carried 

out, Article 14 requires the deputy sheriff be provided an evidentiary hearing conducted by a civil 

service commission in accordance with the provisions in the statute governing hearings ifa deputy 

sheriff has been ·'removed, discharged, suspended, or reduced in rank or pay." 

While not fully determinative of the issue at hand, the West Virginia Supreme Court has 

recognized that Article 14C contemplates two types ofhearings with one being a "pre-disciplinary 

hearing" and another conducted after discipline, particularly in situations of punitive discipline. 

See Burgess v. Moore, 224 W. Va. 291, 298,685 S.E.2d 685 (2009). Within the Burgess opinion, 

the Court found that with regard to the second hearing, it "is conducted after disciplinary action in 

the form of 'discharge, suspension or reduction in rank or pay' has been taken and is held in 

accordance with the provisions ofW. Va. Code § 7-14-17 (1996) (Repl. Vol. 2006)." Id. at Syl. 

Pt. 6, in part, (emphasis added). Although Burgess primarily dealt with the right to a 

pre-disciplinary hearing, it recognizes the clear difference between pre-discipline procedure and 
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post-discipline procedures. Specifically, if a deputy sheriff suffers discharge, suspension or 

reduction in rank or pay there is entitlement to protections found in West Virginia Code § 7-14-17. 

Finally, the West Virginia Supreme Court has previously stated, 

The legislature was careful to surround the termination of a deputy 
sheriff with a number of procedural safeguards including a full 
hearing before the commission, if demanded. In several cases, we 
have held that unless there was some specific statutory authority, a 
governmental body could act only as a group. See City ofFairmont 
v. Hawkins, 172 W. Va. 240, 304 S.E.2d 824 (1983); Edwards v. 
Hylbert, 146 W. Va. 1, 118 S.E.2d 347 (1960); Daugherty v. Ellis, 
142 W. Va. 340, 97 S.E.2d 33 (1956). 

Ashley v. McMillian, 184 W. Va. 590, 592,402 S.E.2d 259,261 (1991). 

The Court in Ashley further reiterated "[i]t is apparent that the power to remove a deputy 

sheriff under the foregoing statutes resides with the civil service commission and is exercised by 

it through the statutorily mandated hearing procedures." Id at 592, 261. Although Sheriff Marano 

takes issue with relying on the rulings in Ashley because the case was decided before the enactment 

of Article 14C, the opinion is still sound when considering the very direct statutory language of 

West Virginia Code § 7-14-17(a) that no deputy sheriff may be removed, discharged, suspended

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